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Biblio. Ref.

By Executive Order, a small island located in the Porte des Morts Passage,
Wisconsin was withdrawn from the Public Domain on 28 May 1858 for use of
the Lighthouse Service. The island, now named Pilot Island, is a 3.5 acre
island of rock and stone in Door County, Wisconsin and lies two miles to the

(1) East of Plum Island, which earned this name by being located "plum center"
in the Porte des Morts Passage. (1)

The buildings of the station, which was established here in 1858, were con-
structed primarily of stone in an architectural style commensurate with its
time and comparable to the Cana Island and Chamber Island lighthouses which
are on the National Register and are all located in Door County, Wisconsin.

The Pilot Island Station was decommissioned and the light automated in June 1962.

At the time the Lighthouse Service obtained this property it was called Porte
des Morts Island and the light established thereon in 1858 was called Porte
des Morts Light. Sometime during the end of 1874 or the beginning of 1875,
the island and light became known as the Pilot Island Light on Pilot Island.
This has been determined by the Lighthouse Service's Annual Reports dated
1874 and 1875. The 1874 report had reference to the Porte des Morts Light
and the 1875 report did not reference the Porte des Morts Light but did list
the Pilot Island Light.

There are three buildings on Pilot Island, they are: ‘
Lighthouse dwelling construted in 1858 CONDINON-Co0D
Fog Signal Building constructed in 1900 (EST) CONDITNOAN~GOOD
Frame Storage Building constructed in 1940 (EST) Conid i1 On/—G00 D

The light is 48 feet above the water and located at Lat. N 45 17.1 Long W 86 55.2
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Pilot Island is little more than a rock in the sea and a very dreary place.
The island was frequently enveloped in fog and in spite of the fog signal
and light, navigation through the Porte des Morts Passage was considered a
perilous journey. As it was the scene of a number of wrecks, the depressing
name Porte des Morts, which translate to ''Deaths Door'" was bestowed upon the
Passage by the early French fur traders. (2)

The island was practically inaccessible in a storm and one keeper noted in his
log that he went to Washington Island for his mail and couldn't get back for
three weeks. But it was the ten inch steam whistle which blasted out every
thirty seconds in foggy weather that made the station so trying. Since the
island was shrouded in fog most of the time, the monotonous bellow was nerve
wracking, buts its biggest drawback was that if deprived the’ keeper of poultry
and fresh mil&. The vibration from the fog horn was so intense it killed the
forming chicks in the eggs before they could hatch and curdled milk within a
matter of minutes. It was further reported that John Boice, anlassistant keeper,
cut his throat on June 20, 1880.(})

As the island was the site of many wrecks it was also the site of a number of
daring rescues, the most dramatic probably occurred in the fall of 1892. The
keeper, Martin Knudson saved the ten men crew of the schooner "J. C. Gilmore"
and the six men crew of the"A. P. Nichols" during that storm.(4)

As the island fog signal is no longer considered an essential aid to Great
Lakes shipping, it was removed at the same time the station was decommissioned,

June 1962.
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7. DESCRIPTION

A Congressional appropriation for construction of a lighthouse at Port du
Mort was approved on August 14, 1848 for $3,500.00 The first light on the
island was established in 1850. It was not until May 28, 1858, however, that
the island was actually set aside by Executive Order for lighthouse purposes.
The lighthouse now standing was built in 1858 and consists of a rectangular
brick Keeper's house measuring 45 feet by 32 feet. It is a two story building
with a gable roof. The light tower penetrates through the gable roof at the
west end. The light tower is a square frame structure 8 feet 0 inches on a
side, surmounted by a ten-sided cast iron lantern with an inscribed diameter
of 7 feet 5 inches. The lense, originally a Fourth Order Fresnel made by
Henry Lepaute is no longer in place and has been replaced with a 12 volt
lamp. The brick fog signal building, constructed in 1900, measures 22 feet by
32 feet. The fog signal equipment has been removed. The only other structure
at the site is a wood frame storage building constructed ca. 1940.

In addition to the buildings presently at the site there were eight other
structures that have been removed over the years. The original fog signal
building was converted to the Second Assistant Keepers dwelling in 1900.
There was also a privy, an oil house, a boathouse, two docks (one on the east
side and one on the west side of the island), workshop and woodshed.

The name of the island has been the cause of some problems. There is
evidence that the name Pilot Island was already in use in 1850. The island
may have been the home of early pilots who guided sailing vessels through the
passage or the island itself was considered to be a landmark for "piloting"
unfamiliar mariners through Death's Door to safe waters in Green Bay.

The Lighthouse Establishment, however, chose the name Porte des Morts
(Death's Door) for the name of the lighthouse itself. The Annual Report of
the Lighthouse Service for 1875 is an exception to this and refers to the
‘light as Pilot Island. Except for that one exception, however, the light was
originally known as Port du Mort and then Porte des Morts until the name was
officially changed on December 1, 1910 to Pilot Island Light. In June 1962
the light was automated and all resident personnel were removed.

8. STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE:

Historically, Death's Door Passage, is one of the most treacherous areas
on the Great Lakes. The area became significant quite early due to the fact
that it is the most direct route from Lake Michigan into Green Bay. It was
first navigated by La Salle in 1679. During that season La Salle established
a trading post at what is now Green Bay, Wisconsin and navigation in the area
has been extant ever since. By the 1840's the influx of immigrants to the
area from Europe in search of farmland greatly increased the number of vessels
traversing the Passage. Consequently, Congress approved the establishment of
a lighthouse at Port du Mort on August 14, 1848, The original lighthouse
stood 25 feet high from the base to the focal plane and 37 feet above the
water,



The original light was not considered effective and in 1858 the present
structure was built, being 35 feet from the base to the focal plane and
46 feet above the water. The patterns of navigation in this area made the
lighthouse quite significant. Even with the lighthouse and fog signal in
operation wrecks were not uncommon and it often fell to the lightkeeper to
perform rescues as well as tend the light. One of the more significant
rescues involved the schooner "A. P. Nichols" that stranded on the island on
November 4, 1892. The keeper Martin Knudson, upon discovering the wreck,
waded out onto the reef at the height of the storm in the dark and, one by
one, led the crew members to safety. In all, Knudson saved six people from
the "Nichols". The week before, Knudson had rescued the ten man crew of the
schooner "J. C. Gilmore". Due to the continuing stormy weather it had not
been possible to get anyone to the mainland and Knudson was faced with
entertaining sixteen uninvited guests. Fortunately, the weather did subside
on the 5th and everyone was safely transferred to the Door Peninsula.

Death's Door is still an important artery in the navigational pattern of
the Great Lakes. Coal, fuel o0il, cement and pulp products regqularly pass
through "the Door" on vessels trading between Green Bay and Lake Michigan. 1In
addition to commercial shipping, recreational boating, ferry service and
commercial fishing are extant in the area.

Pilot Island Light is an important and integral part of the history of
navigation in the Door County area.
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